

www.bre.co.uk

BRE Global Test Report

EN 13823 Single Burning Item (SBI) test on d+b facades powder coated aluminium rainscreen cassette system

Prepared for:d+b facades UK LimitedDate:03 March 2021Report Number:Q101153-1000 Issue 2

BRE Global Ltd Watford, Herts WD25 9XX

Customer Services 0333 321 8811

From outside the UK: T + 44 (0) 1923 664000 F + 44 (0) 1923 664010 E <u>enquiries@bre.co.uk</u> <u>www.bre.co.uk</u> Prepared for:

d+b facades UK Limited The Packway Larkhill Salisbury Wiltshire SP4 8PY United Kingdom



Prepared by

Name C A Rock

Position Senior Consultant

Signature

ARock

Authorised by

Name J Hunter

Position Section Leader – Reaction to Fire

Date 03 March 2021

Signature

This report is made on behalf of BRE Global and may only be distributed in its entirety, without amendment, and with attribution to BRE Global Ltd to the extent permitted by the terms and conditions of the contract. Test results relate only to the specimens tested. BRE Global has no responsibility for the design, materials, workmanship or performance of the product or specimens tested. This report does not constitute an approval, certification or endorsement of the product tested and no such claims should be made on websites, marketing materials, etc. Any reference to the results contained in this report should be accompanied by a copy of the full report, or a link to a copy of the full report.

BRE Global's liability in respect of this report and reliance thereupon shall be as per the terms and conditions of contract with the client and BRE Global shall have no liability to third parties to the extent permitted in law.

Opinions and interpretations expressed herein are outside the scope of UKAS Accreditation.

Table of Contents

| 1 | Objective | | | |
|---|--|---|----|--|
| 2 | Sa | Sample | | |
| | 2.1 | Traceability | 4 | |
| | 2.2 | Description of sample and test format | 4 | |
| | 2.3 | Description of substrate and fixing | 6 | |
| | 2.4 | Jointing details | 6 | |
| | 2.5 | Mounting technique | 7 | |
| 3 | C | onditioning | 7 | |
| 4 | Re | esults | 7 | |
| | 4.1 | Tabulated data | 7 | |
| | 4.2 | Observations | 8 | |
| | 4.3 | Graphical outputs and summary data | 9 | |
| | 4.4 | Photographs | 13 | |
| 5 | Co | onclusion | 15 | |
| 6 | Validity 15 | | | |
| 7 | Re | eferences | 15 | |
| A | opend | ix A Test sponsor's product description | 17 | |
| | Table | A.1: Test Sponsor's product description | 17 | |
| | Figure A.1: Schematic diagram showing joint detailing, provided by the test sponsor 19 | | | |

1 Objective

To assess the performance of the sample described in Section 2 of this report when subjected to the tests specified in EN 13823: 2010 + A1: 2014¹.

2 Sample

2.1 Traceability

The test samples were supplied by the test sponsor. BRE Global was not involved in the sample selection process and therefore cannot comment upon the relationship between the samples supplied for test and the product supplied to market. The results apply to the sample as received.

2.2 Description of sample and test format

Unless otherwise stated all measurements are nominal.

| Parameter | Details |
|---|--|
| Test sponsor | d+b facades UK Limited The Packway Larkhill Salisbury Wiltshire SP4 8PY United Kingdom |
| Manufacturer of sample | MSP 1-9 Telford Road East Lenziemill Cumbernauld G67 2AX United Kingdom |
| Place of manufacture | Scotland, United Kingdom |
| Trade name | d+b facades powder coated aluminium rainscreen cassette system |
| Sample reference | d+b facades powder coated aluminium rainscreen cassette system, Anodic Bronze Matt Y2214F |
| Sample description (as provided by test sponsor/manufacturer) | Polyester powder coating applied to an aluminium substrate. The test sponsor's product description is reproduced as Table A.1. |
| Description of sample (as received) | A nominal 3 mm-thick metal cassette system with a bronze coating on the front (test) face mounted onto a metal framework. |
| Test sponsor's product data | |
| Generic type of product | PPC aluminium cassette system |

| Parameter | Details |
|--|---|
| EAD 090062-00-0404 product family | Family G. The cladding elements are suspended on the subframe by means of a hook-on arrangement with slotted fixings. |
| Type of cladding fixings | Hook/slot profile and rails or other similar fixings |
| Nominal thickness (mm) | 3 |
| Nominal mass per unit area (kg/m²) | 8.28 (calculated, max.) |
| Colour | Aluminium: Silver Coating: Anodic Bronze, Matt Mineral wool: Yellow/brown |
| Flame retardant treatment added, or organic content limited during production (yes/no) | No |
| European product standard, if applicable | EAD 090062-00-0404 ² |
| Sheet material | |
| Generic type of product | Aluminium Alloy, 3103H14 |
| Nominal density (kg/m³) | 2730 |
| Nominal mass per unit area (kg/m²) | 8.19 |
| Nominal thickness (mm) | 3 |
| Measured gross heat of combustion (MJ/kg) | 0.0 (CWFT, deemed to satisfy) |
| Coating | |
| Generic type of product | Polyester powder coating |
| Manufacturer | AkzoNobel Powder Coatings |
| Trade name | Interpon 2525 Super Durable Powder (Anodic range) |
| Nominal density (kg/m³) | 1200 – 1700 (dependant on colour) |
| Nominal mass per unit area (g/m²) | 72 ± 20% (57.6 to 86.4), cured |
| Nominal thickness (µm) | 36 to 54 |
| Nominal gross heat of combustion (MJ/kg) | 23.051 |
| Nominal gross heat of combustion @ 72 g/m ² \pm 20 % (MJ/m ²) | 1.66 (1.33 - 1.99) |
| Substrate and ventilation conditions | |
| Calcium silicate | |
| Generic type | Calcium silicate |
| Trade name | Promatect H |
| Nominal thickness (mm) | 12 |
| Nominal density (kg/m³) | 870 ± 50 |
| Position | Behind mineral wool insulation |

| Parameter | Details | | | |
|---|--|--|--|--|
| Insulation | | | | |
| Generic type | Mineral wool (unfaced stone wool) | | | |
| Trade name | Rockwool RWA45 | | | |
| Nominal thickness (mm) | 50 | | | |
| Nominal density (kg/m³) | 45 | | | |
| Thermal conductivity (W/mK) | 0.035 | | | |
| Classification to EN 13501-1 ³ | A1 | | | |
| Ventilation condition | | | | |
| Type of ventilation | Ventilated cavity | | | |
| Test information | | | | |
| Face to be tested | External coated front face | | | |
| Orientation aspects | Only the front face was PPC coated | | | |
| Test sponsor's sampling identification | Note 1 | | | |
| BRE Global sample number | E12934/E12940 | | | |
| Sample receipt date | 23 July 2020 and 28 July 2020 | | | |
| Date into conditioning | 27 July 2020 and 28 July 2020 | | | |
| Date of test | 06 August 2020 | | | |
| Additional information | d+b facades rainscreen system is stated by the test sponsor to comprise a built up system of stainless steel anchors / alum brackets rails and panels (3 mm) c/w integral mineral wool insulation and cavity barriers. | | | |

Note 1: This information was not supplied by the test sponsor.

2.3 Description of substrate and fixing

The test specimen was mechanically fixed to a metal sub-structure. A 50 mm-thick, 45 kg/m³ mineral wool was placed between the back face of the substructure and the front face of the substrate.

2.4 Jointing details

- A vertical joint was incorporated into the long wing of the test specimen, at a distance of 200 mm from the finished face of the short wing to the centreline of the joint. The joint width was 20 mm.
- A horizontal joint was incorporated into the long wing of the test specimen, at a height of 500 mm from the base of the long wing to the centreline of the joint. The joint width was 20 mm.
- The test sponsor stated that the system did not incorporate an internal corner joint. The sample was supplied as L-shaped test specimens with a folded metal corner as shown in section 4.4 and Figure A.1.

2.5 Mounting technique

A ventilated cavity was introduced between the back face of the test specimen and the front face of the mineral wool insulation. The SBI equipment was placed in the arrangement used for testing products that are free standing or that have a ventilated cavity in their end use application. This necessitated replacing the two side panels by half panels, covering only the upper half of the side openings.

3 Conditioning

The test specimens were conditioned as required by the test standard.

4 Results

4.1 Tabulated data

Table 1: Event summary

| Event | Occurrence of event (Yes/No) | | |
|---|------------------------------|------------------|------|
| Run Number | 1 | 2 | 3 |
| Occurrence of a surface flash | No | No | No |
| Smoke from the specimen not entering the hood during the test | No | No | No |
| Falling of parts of the specimen | No | No | No |
| Development of a gap in the corner (mutual fixing of backing boards fails) | No | No | No |
| Occurrence of one or more conditions which justify an early termination of the test | No | No | No |
| Distortion (1) or collapse (2) of the specimen | No | No | No |
| Test duration (s) | 1560 | 1560 | 1560 |
| Any other event | | See observations | |

Note:

Specimens with an average rate of smoke production value, RSP_{av} , of not more than 0.1 m²/s during the total test period or a total smoke production value of not more than 6 m² over the total test period have a SMOGRA value of zero.

The fire growth rate indices are calculated only for that part of the exposure period in which the threshold levels for $RHR_{av}(t)$ and THR have been exceeded. If one or both threshold values are not exceeded during the exposure period, FIGRA is equal to zero. The threshold value used for $RHR_{av}(t)$ is 3 kW. Two different THR threshold values are used, resulting in FIGRA_{0.2MJ} and FIGRA_{0.4MJ}.

Values of THR_{600s} and TSP_{600s} refer to a time of 600 s after the flame has been applied to the specimen. This is 300 s after the start of the test, and therefore represents a time of 900 s in the graphs presented below.

The results of a test are not valid for classification purposes when an early termination of the test has occurred.

4.2 **Observations**

| Run | Comments |
|-------|---------------------|
| 1 - 3 | No further comments |

re

4.3 Graphical outputs and summary data

| General Information | | Product | |
|------------------------------------|--|------------------------------------|--|
| Product Identification | d+b facades powder coated aluminium rainscreen cassette | Sample number Substrate | E12940/F12934 50 mm, 45 kg/m3 mineral wool |
| Standard used | System BS EN 13823 | Mounting | Ventilated cavity |
| Date of test | 06/08/2020 | Joints | Horizontal and vertical 20 |
| Filename | s060820b.rw1 | 001113 | nonzontal and vertical, zo |
| Report reference | Q101153-1000 | | |
| | | Conditioning | |
| Laboratory | | Conditioned | Yes |
| Laboratory name | BRE Global | Time interval | Held on file |
| Operator | C A Rock | Weight 1 (g) | Held on file |
| | | Weight 2 (g) | Held on file |
| Test Results | | | |
| THR ₆₀₀ | 0.38 | Additional Information | |
| FIGRA _{0.2MJ} | 0.0 | Time to FIGRA _{0.2MJ} (s) | #N/A |
| FIGRA _{0.4MJ} | 0.0 | Time to $FIGRA_{0.4MJ}(s)$ | #N/A |
| TSP ₆₀₀ | 19.0 | Time to SMOGRA (s) | #N/A |
| SMOGRA | 0.0 | | |
| Comments | | | |
| LFSedge {Y/N} | No | | |
| FDP (f =< 10s) {Y/N} | No | Chart Lengend | |
| FDP (f > 10s) {Y/N} | No | B FIGRA Threshold | |
| Full test duration/performed {Y/N} | Yes | C FIGRA Threshold | |
| Smoke Correction Used | Yes | D FIGRA Threshold | •••• |
| HRR _{av} Specimen kW 3 | 00-1500s 1.2 1.0 0.8 0.6 0.4 0.2 0.0 1200 1500 | HRR _{av} Specime | n kW 300-600 |
| FIGRA 300s-150 | DOs | THR 300s | -1500s |
| 1 0.8 0.6 0.4 0.2 | 1 0.8 0.6 0.4 0.2 | | |
| 0 | 0 | | |
| 300 500 700 900 11 | .00 1300 1500 30 | 00 500 700 900 | 1100 1300 1500 |
| SPR _{av} 300s-150 | Os | TSP and SMOGR | A 300s-1500s |
| 0.08 0.06 0.04 | 40 30 | | - 0.8 - 0.6 - 0.4 |
| 0.02 | 20 | | - 0.2 |
| 0 | 0 - | 0 500 700 900 | 0.0 1100 1300 1500 |

Commercial in Confidence

| General Information Product Identification | d+b facades UK aluminium cassette system | Product Sample number Substrate | E12940/F12934 50 mm, 45 kg/m3 mineral wool |
|---|--|--|--|
| Standard used | BS EN 13823 | Mounting | Ventilated cavity |
| Date of test | 06/08/2020 | Joints | Horizontal and vertical, 20 |
| Filename | s060820c.rw1 | | |
| Report reference | Q101153-1000 | | |
| | | Conditioning | |
| Laboratory | | Conditioned | Yes |
| Laboratory name | BRE Global | Time interval | Held on file |
| Operator | C A ROCK | Vveight 1 (g) | Held on file |
| Tost Bosults | | vveigni z (g) | Held on the |
| | 0.44 | Additional Information | |
| | 0.44 | | |
| FIGRA _{0.2MJ} | 0.0 | Time to FIGRA _{0.2MJ} (S) | #N/A |
| FIGRA _{0.4MJ} | 0.0 | Time to FIGRA _{0.4MJ} (s) | #N/A |
| TSP ₆₀₀ | 26.6 | Time to SMOGRA (s) | #N/A |
| SMOGRA | 0.0 | | |
| Comments LFSedge $\{Y/N\}$ FDP (f =< 10s) $\{Y/N\}$ FDP (f > 10s) $\{Y/N\}$ Full test duration/performed $\{Y/N\}$ Smoke Correction Used | No No Yes Yes | Chart Lengend B FIGRA Threshold C FIGRA Threshold D FIGRA Threshold | |
| HRR _{av} Specimen kW 30 1.4 1.2 1.0 0.8 0.6 0.4 0.2 0.0 300 600 900 | 00-1500s 1.4 1.2 1.0 0.8 0.6 0.4 0.2 0.0 1200 1500 30 | HRR _{av} Specimer | n kW 300-600 |
| FIGRA 300s-150 | lOs | THR 300s- | -1500s |
| | | | |
| 0.0 | 0.8 | | |
| 0.6 | 0.6 | | |
| 0.4 | 0.4 | | |
| 0.2 | 0.2 | | |
| 0 700 700 111 | 0 | 2 500 700 000 | 1100 1200 1500 |
| 300 500 700 900 11 | 00 1300 1500 30 | 0 500 700 900 | 1100 1300 1500 |
| | 0- | TCD and CMOCD | A 200a 1500a |
| SPR _{av} 3005-150 | US | ISP and SIVIUGR | A 300S-1500S |
| 0.1 | 70 | | 1.0 |
| 0.08 | 60 50 | | - 0.8 |
| 0.06 | 40 | | - 0.6 |
| 0.04 | 30 | | - 0.4 |
| 0.02 | 20 | | - 0.2 |
| | 10 | | 0.0 |
| 300 500 700 900 11 | .00 1300 1500 300 | 500 700 900 | 1100 1300 1500 |
| | | | |

| General Information | | Product | |
|---|---|------------------------------------|--|
| Product Identification | d+b facades powder coated aluminium rainscreen cassette system | Sample number Substrate | E12940/F12934 50 mm, 45 kg/m3 mineral wool |
| Standard used | BS EN 13823 | Mounting | Ventilated cavity |
| Date of test | 06/08/2020 | Joints | Horizontal and vertical, 20 |
| Filename | s060820d.rw1 | | |
| Report reference | Q101153-1000 | Conditioning | |
| Laboratory | | Conditioned | Yes |
| Laboratory name | BRE Global | Time interval | Held on file |
| Operator | C A Rock | Weight 1 (g) | Held on file |
| | | Weight 2 (g) | Held on file |
| Test Results | | | |
| THR ₆₀₀ | 0.64 | Additional Information | 1 |
| FIGRA _{0.2MJ} | 0.0 | Time to FIGRA _{0.2MJ} (s) | #N/A |
| FIGRA _{0.4MJ} | 0.0 | Time to FIGRA _{0.4MJ} (s) | #N/A |
| TSP ₆₀₀ | 18.7 | Time to SMOGRA (s) | #N/A |
| SMOGRA | 0.0 | | |
| Comments | Ne | | |
| | No | Chartlansend | |
| $FDP (I = < IUS) {Y/N}$ $FDP (I > 10c) {Y/N}$ | No | Chart Lengend | |
| Full test duration/performed {Y/N} | Yes | C FIGRA Threshold | |
| Smoke Correction Used | Yes | D FIGRA Threshold | |
| | | | |
| HRR _{av} Specimen kW 3 | 00-1500s | HRR _{av} Specime | n kW 300-600 |
| 2.0 | | 2.0 | |
| | MA | 1.5 | \sim |
| 1.0 Lupur V V W | ~ mummin | 1.0 | |
| $\sim N$ | | | |
| 0.5 | | 0.5 | |
| 0.0 | | 0.0 | |
| 300 600 900 | 1200 1500 | 300 360 420 | 480 540 600 |
| FIGRA 300s-150 | DOs | THR 300s | -1500s |
| 1 | | 1.5 | |
| 0.8 | | | |
| 0.6 | | 1 | |
| 0.4 | | | |
| 0.2 | | 0.5 | |
| | | 0 | |
| 300 500 700 900 12 | 100 1300 1500 | 300 500 700 900 | 0 1100 1300 1500 |
| SPR., 300s-150 | Os | TSP and SMOGR | A 300s-1500s |
| 0.07 | | 60 | 10 |
| 0.06 | | 50 | 1.0 |
| 0.05 | mm | 40 | - 0.8 |
| 0.04 | | 30 | - 0.6 |
| 0.03 | | 20 | - 0.4 |
| 0.02 | | 10 | - 0.2 |
| 0 | | 0 | 0.0 |
| 300 500 700 900 1 | 100 1300 1500 | 300 500 700 900 | 1100 1300 1500 |
| L | | | |

| Product Identification | d+b facades powder | d+b facades powder | d+b facades powder |
|------------------------------------|---------------------|---------------------|---------------------|
| | coated aluminium | coated aluminium | coated aluminium |
| | rainscreen cassette | rainscreen cassette | rainscreen cassette |
| | system | system | system |
| Specimen number | E12940/F12934 | E12940/F12934 | E12940/F12934 |
| Operator | C A Rock | C A Rock | C A Rock |
| Date of test | 06-Aug-20 | 06-Aug-20 | 06-Aug-20 |
| Filename | s060820b.rw1 | s060820c.rw1 | s060820d.rw1 |
| THR ₆₀₀ | 0.38 | 0.44 | 0.64 |
| FIGRA _{0.2MJ} | 0.0 | 0.0 | 0.0 |
| FIGRA _{0.4MJ} | 0.0 | 0.0 | 0.0 |
| TSP ₆₀₀ | 19.0 | 26.6 | 18.7 |
| SMOGRA | 0.0 | 0.0 | 0.0 |
| Time of FIGRA _{0.2MJ} (s) | #N/A | #N/A | #N/A |
| Time of FIGRA _{0.4MJ} (s) | #N/A | #N/A | #N/A |
| LFSedge {Y/N} | N | N | N |
| FDP (f =< 10s) {Y/N} | N | N | N |
| FDP (f > 10s) {Y/N} | N | N | N |
| Smoke Correction Used | Yes | Yes | Yes |



| Test Averages | | |
|------------------------|-------|--|
| THR ₆₀₀ | 0.49 | |
| FIGRA _{0.2MJ} | 0.00 | |
| FIGRA _{0.4MJ} | 0.00 | |
| TSP ₆₀₀ | 21.42 | |
| SMOGRA | 0.00 | |
| LFSedge {Y/N} | N | |



4.4 Photographs

Q101153-1000 (Run 1) Pre-test photographs, interior (front) face



Q101153-1000 (Run 2) Pre-test photographs



Q1011153-1000 (Run 3) Pre-test photographs



5 Conclusion

EN 13823 does not contain acceptance criteria and therefore this test report does not indicate a pass or fail of the product.

6 Validity

This report is Issue 2 of BRE Global report Q101153-1000. At the request of the test sponsor, a correction has been made to the product name in this report. BRE Global report Q101153-1000 Issue 1, dated 29 September 2020, has been withdrawn with effect from the date of this report.

These test results relate to the behaviour of the sample in the form in which it was tested; the results do not necessarily relate to products produced as a result of further processing or refinement of the sample under test.

The test results relate only to behaviour of the test specimens of the product under the particular conditions of test, they are not intended to be the sole criteria for assessing the potential fire hazard of the product in use.

The information in section 2.2 and in Appendix A of this report, other than that indicated otherwise, was supplied by the test sponsor and was not independently verified by BRE Global. The validity of the results is conditional on the accuracy of that data.

7 References

1 EN 13823: 2010 + A1: 2014. Reaction to fire tests for building products - Building products excluding floorings exposed to the thermal attack by a single burning item. CEN, Avenue Marnix 17, B-1000 Brussels. 2014.

- 2 European Assessment Document 090062-00-0404 Kits for external wall claddings mechanically fixed. EOTA. July 2018.
- 3 EN 13501-1: 2018. Fire classification of construction products and building elements. Part 1: Classification using data from reaction to fire tests. CEN, Rue de la Science 23, B-1040 Brussels. 2018.

Appendix A Test sponsor's product description

Table A.1: Test Sponsor's product description

| Company: d+b facades | | | |
|------------------------------------|--|--|--|
| Parameter | | Details (if applicable) | |
| Trade name | | d+b facades | |
| General descri | ption | d+b facades powder coated aluminium rainscreen cassette system | |
| Name and add | lress of manufacturer of product | MSP, 1-9 Telford Road, East Lenziemill, Cumbernauld, G67 2AX | |
| Place of manu | facture | Scotland, UK | |
| Product refere | nce/number | d+b facades powder coated aluminium rainscreen cassette system | |
| Thickness (ove | erall system) | Note 1 | |
| Density (overa | ll system) | Note 1 | |
| Mass per unit | area (overall system) | Note 1 | |
| Generic type o | f product | Polyester powder coating applied to an aluminium substrate | |
| Flame retardar limited during p | nt treatment added, or organic content production (yes/no), if yes give details | No. | |
| European proc | luct standard, if applicable | Note 1 | |
| Industry/in-hou | use product standard, if applicable | Note 1 | |
| Attestation of c | conformity systems, if applicable | Note 1 | |
| Topcoat (1) (test face) | Generic type Product reference Manufacturer Colour Specific density (wet) Application rate (wet) (m²/litre) Dry film thickness (dft) Mass per unit area/density (dry) Inert filler (type, amount, density) (if applicable) Trade name flame retardant Generic type flame retardant Amount flame retardant | Polyester "Y2214F" - D2525 Super Durable powder (Anodic range). AkzoNobel Powder Coatings Anodic Bronze, Matt (observed – Dark Brown) N/A N/A Average 36 - 54 micron coating (no reading below 22 micron) Cured PPC weight of less than 86.4 g/m ² Note 1 Note 1 Note 1 Note 1 Note 1 | |
| Layer (2) | Generic type Product reference Manufacturer Colour Specific density (wet) Application rate (wet) (m²/litre) Dry film thickness (dft) Mass per unit area/density (dry) Inert filler (type, amount, density) (if applicable) Trade name flame retardant Generic type flame retardant Amount flame retardant | n/a | |

| Company: d+b facades | | | | |
|--|--|---|--|--|
| Parameter | | Details (if applicable) | | |
| Layer (3) | Generic type Product reference Manufacturer Colour Specific density (wet) Application rate (wet) (m²/litre) Dry film thickness (dft) Mass per unit area/density (dry) Inert filler (type, amount, density) (if applicable) Trade name flame retardant Generic type flame retardant Amount flame retardant | n/a | | |
| Primer (if applicable) | Generic type Product reference Manufacturer Colour Specific density (wet) Application rate (wet) (m²/litre) Dry film thickness (dft) Mass per unit area/density (dry) Inert filler (type, amount, density) (if applicable) Trade name flame retardant Generic type flame retardant Amount flame retardant | n/a | | |
| Substrate (if applicable) (see EN 13238) | - Generic type - Product standard - Product name/reference - Manufacturer - Thickness - Density or mass per unit area - Class (EN 13501-1) | Aluminium Alloy Sheet 3103H14 Hydro 3 mm 2.73 g/cm ³ EN 485-1:2016 | | |
| Face to be teste | d | Note 1 | | |
| Orientation aspe | ects | Note 1 | | |
| Sampling Identit | ication Reference | Note 1 | | |
| Additional inform | nation | Note 1 | | |

Note 1: This information was not supplied by the test sponsor.



Figure A.1: Schematic diagram showing joint detailing, provided by the test sponsor

www.bre.co.uk

bre

BRE Global Classification Report

Classification of reaction to fire performance in accordance with EN 13501-1: 2018 on d+b facades powder coated aluminium rainscreen cassette system

Prepared for:d+b facades UK LimitedDate:03 March 2021Report Number:Q101153-1001 Issue 2

BRE Global Ltd Watford, Herts WD25 9XX

Customer Services 0333 321 8811

From outside the UK: T + 44 (0) 1923 664000 F + 44 (0) 1923 664010 E <u>enquiries@bre.co.uk</u> <u>www.bre.co.uk</u> Prepared for:

d+b facades UK Limited The Packway Larkhill Salisbury Wiltshire SP4 8PY United Kingdom



Prepared by

Name C A Rock

Position Senior Consultant

Signature

ARock

Authorised by

Name J Hunter

Position Section Leader, Reaction to Fire

Date 03 March 2021

Signature

This report is made on behalf of BRE Global and may only be distributed in its entirety, without amendment, and with attribution to BRE Global Ltd to the extent permitted by the terms and conditions of the contract. Test results relate only to the specimens tested. BRE Global has no responsibility for the design, materials, workmanship or performance of the product or specimens tested. This report does not constitute an approval, certification or endorsement of the product tested and no such claims should be made on websites, marketing materials, etc. Any reference to the results contained in this report should be accompanied by a copy of the full report, or a link to a copy of the full report.

BRE Global's liability in respect of this report and reliance thereupon shall be as per the terms and conditions of contract with the client and BRE Global shall have no liability to third parties to the extent permitted in law.

Opinions and interpretations expressed herein are outside the scope of UKAS Accreditation.

Table of Contents

| 1 | Int | roduction | 4 | | |
|---|--|---|--------|--|--|
| 2 | Det | tails of classified product | 5 | | |
| | 2.1 | General | 5 | | |
| | 2.2 | Product description | 5 | | |
| | 2.2.1 2.2.2 | Traceability Sample details | 5 5 | | |
| 3 | Re | ports & results in support of this classification | 7 | | |
| | 3.1 | Reports | 7 | | |
| | 3.2 | Results | 8 | | |
| 4 | Cla | ssification and field of application | 9 | | |
| | 4.1 | Reference of classification | 9 | | |
| | 4.2 | Classification | 9 | | |
| | 4.3 | Field of application | 9 | | |
| 5 | Lin | nitations | 10 | | |
| 6 | Ret | ferences | 11 | | |
| A | opendix | A Test sponsor's product description | 12 | | |
| | Table / | A.1: Test Sponsor's product description | 12 | | |
| | Figure A.1: Schematic diagram showing joint detailing, provided by the test sponsor 14 | | | | |
| | Figure A.2: EN 13823 test specimen15 | | | | |

1 Introduction

This classification report defines the classification assigned to 'd+b facades powder coated aluminium rainscreen cassette system' in accordance with the procedures given in EN 13501-1: 2018¹.

BRE Global

CLASSIFICATION OF REACTION TO FIRE

IN ACCORDANCE WITH EN 13501-1: 2018

| Sponsor: | d+b facades UK Limited, The Packway, Larkhill, Salisbury, Wiltshire, SP4 8PY, United Kingdom |
|----------------------------|---|
| Prepared for: | d+b facades UK Limited, The Packway, Larkhill, Salisbury, Wiltshire, SP4 8PY, United Kingdom |
| Manufacturer: | MSP, 1-9 Telford Road, East Lenziemill, Cumbernauld, G67 2AX, United Kingdom |
| Place of Manufacture: | Scotland, United Kingdom |
| Prepared by: | BRE Global, Bucknalls Lane, Garston, Watford, Hertfordshire, WD25 9XX, UK |
| Notified Body No.: | 0832 |
| Product name: | d+b facades powder coated aluminium rainscreen cassette system |
| Classification report No.: | Q101153-1001 |
| Issue number: | Тwo |
| Date of issue: | 03 March 2021 |
| | |

This classification report consists of 15 pages and may only be used or reproduced in its entirety.

2 Details of classified product

2.1 General

The product, 'd+b facades powder coated aluminium rainscreen cassette system', is defined by the test sponsor as a mechanically fixed external wall cladding panel in accordance with European Assessment Document 090062-00-0404².

2.2 **Product description**

The product, 'd+b facades powder coated aluminium rainscreen cassette system', is described in section 2.2.2.

2.2.1 Traceability

The test sample was supplied by the test sponsor. BRE Global was not involved in the sampling process and therefore cannot comment upon the relationship between the sample supplied for test and the product supplied to market. Note that the performance of products sampled from the field may not be representative of the product when initially placed on the market and installed. The results apply to the sample as received.

2.2.2 Sample details

Unless otherwise stated all measurements are nominal.

| Parameter | Details |
|---|--|
| Test sponsor | d+b facades UK Limited The Packway Larkhill Salisbury Wiltshire SP4 8PY United Kingdom |
| Manufacturer of sample | MSP 1-9 Telford Road East Lenziemill Cumbernauld G67 2AX United Kingdom |
| Place of manufacture | Scotland, United Kingdom |
| Trade name | d+b facades powder coated aluminium rainscreen cassette system |
| Sample reference | d+b facades powder coated aluminium rainscreen cassette system, Anodic Bronze Matt Y2214F |
| Sample description (as provided by test sponsor/manufacturer) | Polyester powder coating applied to an aluminium substrate. The test sponsor's product description is reproduced as Table A.1. |
| Description of sample (as received) | A nominal 3 mm-thick metal cassette system with a bronze coating on the front (test) face mounted onto a metal framework. |

| Parameter | Details | | | |
|--|---|--|--|--|
| Test sponsor's product data | | | | |
| Generic type of product | PPC aluminium cassette system | | | |
| EAD 090062-00-0404 product family | Family G. The cladding elements are suspended on the subframe by means of a hook-on arrangement with slotted fixings. | | | |
| Type of cladding fixings | Hook/slot profile and rails or other similar fixings | | | |
| Nominal thickness (mm) | 3 | | | |
| Nominal mass per unit area (kg/m²) | 8.28 (calculated, max.) | | | |
| Colour | Aluminium: Silver Coating: Anodic Bronze, Matt Mineral wool: Yellow/brown | | | |
| Flame retardant treatment added, or organic content limited during production (yes/no) | No | | | |
| European product standard, if applicable | EAD 090062-00-0404 ² | | | |
| Sheet material | | | | |
| Generic type of product | Aluminium Alloy, 3103H14 | | | |
| Nominal density (kg/m³) | 2730 | | | |
| Nominal mass per unit area (kg/m²) | 8.19 | | | |
| Nominal thickness (mm) | 3 | | | |
| Measured gross heat of combustion (MJ/kg) | 0.0 (CWFT, deemed to satisfy) | | | |
| Coating | | | | |
| Generic type of product | Polyester powder coating | | | |
| Manufacturer | AkzoNobel Powder Coatings | | | |
| Trade name | Interpon 2525 Super Durable Powder (Anodic range) | | | |
| Nominal density (kg/m³) | 1200 – 1700 (dependant on colour) | | | |
| Nominal mass per unit area (g/m²) | 72 ± 20% (57.6 to 86.4), cured | | | |
| Nominal thickness (µm) | 36 to 54 | | | |
| Nominal gross heat of combustion (MJ/kg) | 23.051 | | | |
| Nominal gross heat of combustion @ 72 g/m ² \pm 20 % (MJ/m ²) | 1.66 (1.33 - 1.99) | | | |
| Substrate and ventilation conditions | | | | |
| Calcium silicate | | | | |
| Generic type | Calcium silicate | | | |
| Trade name | Promatect H | | | |
| Nominal thickness (mm) | 12 | | | |
| Nominal density (kg/m³) | 870 ± 50 | | | |

| Parameter | Details | | |
|---|--|--|--|
| Position | Behind mineral wool insulation | | |
| Insulation | | | |
| Generic type | Mineral wool (unfaced stone wool) | | |
| Trade name | Rockwool RWA45 | | |
| Nominal thickness (mm) | 50 | | |
| Nominal density (kg/m³) | 45 | | |
| Thermal conductivity (W/mK) | 0.035 | | |
| Classification to EN 13501-1 ³ | A1 | | |
| Ventilation condition | | | |
| Type of ventilation | Ventilated cavity | | |
| Test information | | | |
| Face to be tested | External coated front face | | |
| Orientation aspects | Only the front face was PPC coated | | |
| Test sponsor's sampling identification | Note 1 | | |
| BRE Global sample number | E12934/E12940 | | |
| Additional information | d+b facades rainscreen system is stated by the test sponsor to comprise a built up system of stainless steel anchors / alum brackets rails and panels (3 mm) c/w integral mineral wool insulation and cavity barriers. | | |

Note 1: This information was not supplied by the test sponsor.

3 Reports & results in support of this classification

3.1 Reports

| Name of Laboratory | Name of test sponsor | Test reports Nos. | Test method/field of application rules |
|-----------------------|-----------------------------|---------------------------------------|--|
| BRE Global | d+b facades UK Limited | Q101153-1000 Issue 2 | EN 13823 ³ |
| Warringtonfire | AkzoNobel Powder Coatings | WF Classification Report No.419155 | EN 13501-1 ¹ |
| Warringtonfire | International Paint Limited | WF No.416460 | EN ISO 1716 ⁴ |

3.2 Results

| Test method & | Parameter | No. test | Results | | |
|--|---|-------------|--|---|--|
| | | runs | Continuous parameter - mean (m) | Compliance with parameters Criterion / Compliance status A1 | |
| EN ISO 1716 | Q _{PCS} | | 23.051 MJ/kg | -/- | |
| Polyester powder coating of 'Super Durable PPC | Q _{PCSs} @ 72 g/m ² ± 20 % (MJ/m ²) | | 1.99 MJ/m² (max.) | ≤ 2.0 MJ/m² / Compliant | |
| Aluminium' | Q _{PCSext} | - | 23.051 MJ/kg | -/- | |
| WF Classification Report No.419155 reported 22/10/2019 | Q _{PCSsext} @ 72 g/m² ± 20 % (MJ/m²) | | 1.99 MJ/m² (max.) | ≤ 2.0 MJ/m² / Compliant | |
| EN ISO 1716 Polyester powder coating WF No.416460 Tested: 18/07/2019 by: D. Roberts | Q _{PCS} (Polyester Bronze Y2214F) | 1 (ind.) | 22.9960 | -/- | |
| EN ISO 1716 Aluminium Alloy | Q _{PCS} (Deemed to satisfy in accordance with test standard) | | 0 MJ/kg | ≤ 2.0 MJ/kg / Compliant | |
| | Q _{PCSs} (Deemed to satisfy in accordance with test standard) | - | 0 MJ/m² | -/- | |
| EN ISO 1716 | Q _{PCS} | | 1.99 MJ/kg | ≤ 2.0 MJ/kg / Compliant | |
| Whole product | Q _{PCSs} @ 8.28 kg/m ² | - | 0.24 MJ/m ² | -/- | |
| EN ISO 1182 Aluminium decking | Deemed to satisfy class A1 without testing in accordance with Commission Decision 96/603/EC (OJ L 267 19.10.1966 p23) as amended by 2000/605/EC (OJ L 258 12.10.2000 p36) and 2003/424/EC (OJ L 144 12.6.2003 p9). Not testable in this apparatus, as the melting point of aluminium is lower than the average temperature of the furnace. | | | h Commission Decision 605/EC (OJ L 258 12.10.2000 um is lower than the average | |
| EN 13823 Q101153-1000 Tested: 06/08/2020 by C. Rock | FIGRA 0.2MJ FIGRA 0.4MJ LFS THR 600s | - 3 | 0.00 W/s 0.00 W/s (-) 0.49 MJ | ≤ 20 W/s / Compliant -/- ≤ edge of specimen / Compliant ≤ 4.0 MJ / Compliant | |
| | SMUGRA TSP _{600s} | | 0.00 m²/s² 21.42 m² | \leq 30 m ² /s ² / Compliant \leq 50 m ² / Compliant | |
| | Flaming droplets/particles ≤ 10s Flaming droplets/particles > 10s | | Not observed Not observed | Flaming ≤ 10s / Compliant Flaming > 10s / Compliant | |

4 Classification and field of application

4.1 Reference of classification

This classification has been carried out in accordance with EN 13501-1: 2018.

4.2 Classification

The product, 'd+b facades powder coated aluminium rainscreen cassette system', in relation to reaction to fire behaviour is classified:

A1

The additional classification in relation to smoke production is:

The additional classification in relation to flaming droplets / particles is:

The format of the reaction to fire classification for construction products excluding floorings and linear pipe thermal insulation products is:

| Fire Behaviour | | Smoke Production | | | Flar | ning Droplets |
|----------------|---|------------------|---|---|------|---------------|
| A1 | - | S | - | , | d | - |

i.e. A1

Reaction to fire classification: A1

4.3 Field of application

This classification is valid for:

i) Aluminium external wall cladding cassette.

And the following product and mounting and fixing parameters:

| Parameter | Field of application | |
|---------------------------------|---|--|
| Composition | As tested. No variation in composition allowed. | |
| Build-up and ordering of layers | As tested. No variation in build-up allowed. | |
| Dimension of cladding elements | As tested. Valid for greater dimensions (height and width) of cladding elements than that tested. | |
| Cladding fixings | Stainless steel anchors. Valid for a higher density of cladding fixings than that tested. Valid for the same type of cladding element fixed using either screws or rivets composed of the same material as that tested. | |
| Type of sub-structure | Aluminium brackets rails, ventilated. | |
| Air space behind panel | 30 mm. Valid for air spaces ≥ 30 mm. | |

| Parameter | Field of application | | |
|----------------------------------|--|--|--|
| Insulation | 30 kg/m ³ to 70 kg/m ³ mineral wool, Class A1I. Valid for all other greater thicknesses of mineral wool insulation layer with the same density and the same or better reaction to fire classification. Valid for the same type of panel used without insulation. | | |
| Breather membrane | None. No variation allowed. | | |
| Metal substrate | | | |
| Generic type | Aluminium Alloy. | | |
| Reference | 3103H14 | | |
| Nominal density | 2.73 g/cm ³ | | |
| Nominal Thickness | 3 mm. | | |
| Nominal mass per unit area | 8.19 kg/m² | | |
| Polyester Powder Coating | | | |
| Generic type | Polyester powder coating. No variation allowed. | | |
| Product range | D2525 Super Durable Powder (Anodic range). No variation allowed. | | |
| Nominal density | As tested, no variation allowed. | | |
| Nominal Thickness | 36 to 54 microns. Valid for coating thicknesses \leq 54 microns. | | |
| Nominal mass per unit area | 86.4 g/m² maximum. Valid for coatings with a mass per unit area ≤ 86.4 g/m². | | |
| Colour of coating | Anodic Bronze, Matt. Valid for other colours of coating with a $Q_{PCS} \le 23.05 \text{ MJ/m}^2$ applied at a rate $\le 86.4 \text{ g/m}^2$ with an equal or greater quantity of fire retardant additives. | | |
| Surface finish | As tested. No variation in finish allowed. | | |
| Product orientation | | | |
| Product orientation and geometry | Valid for cladding elements where the polyester coating is applied to the external front (test) face only. | | |
| Joints and exposed edges | Valid for folded metal corners only, as shown in Figures A.1 and A.2. Valid for exposed joints and edges. Valid for cladding elements with a 20 mm wide joint gap between panels. Valid for open horizontal joints closed by steel or aluminium profiles. | | |

This classification is valid for the following end-use applications:

 Mounted as described above onto a masonry or concrete substrate with a density ≥ 653 kg/m³ and a thickness ≥ 11 mm.

5 Limitations

This report is Issue 2 of BRE Global report Q101153-1001. At the request of the test sponsor, a correction has been made to the product name in this report. BRE Global report Q101153-1001 Issue 1, dated 29 September 2020, has been withdrawn with effect from the date of this report.

This classification document does not represent type approval or certification of the product.

The classification assigned to the product in this report is appropriate to a declaration of conformity by the manufacturer within the context of system 3 of AVCP and CE marking under the Regulation 305/2011/EU of the European Parliament and of the Council of 9 March 2011 laying down harmonised conditions for the marketing of construction products.

The manufacturer has made a declaration, which is held on file. This confirms that the product's design requires no specific processes, procedures, or stages (e.g. no addition of flame-retardants, limitation of organic content, or addition of fillers) that are aimed at enhancing the fire performance in order to obtain the classification achieved. As a consequence, the manufacturer has concluded that system 3 attestation is appropriate.

The test laboratory has, therefore, played no part in sampling the product for the test, although it holds appropriate references, supplied by the manufacturer, to provide for traceability of the samples tested.

The information in section 2.2.2 of this report, other than that indicated otherwise, was supplied by the test sponsor and was not independently verified by BRE Global. The validity of the results is conditional on the accuracy of that data.

6 References

- EN 13501-1: 2018. Fire classification of construction products and building elements. Part 1: Classification using data from reaction to fire tests. CEN, Rue de la Science 23, B-1040 Brussels. 2018.
- 2. European Assessment Document 090062-00-0404 Kits for external wall claddings mechanically fixed. EOTA. July 2018.
- EN 13823: 2010 + A1: 2014. Reaction to fire tests for building products Building products excluding floorings exposed to the thermal attack by a single burning item'. CEN, Avenue Marnix 17, B-1000 Brussels. 2014.
- 4. EN ISO 1716: 2018. Reaction to fire tests for products Determination of the gross heat of combustion (calorific value). CEN, Avenue Marnix 17, B-1000 Brussels. 2018.

Appendix A Test sponsor's product description

Table A.1: Test Sponsor's product description

| Company: d+b facades | | | | |
|------------------------------------|---|--|--|--|
| Parameter | | Details (if applicable) | | |
| Trade name | | d+b facades | | |
| General description | | d+b facades powder coated aluminium rainscreen cassette system | | |
| Name and add | lress of manufacturer of product | MSP, 1-9 Telford Road, East Lenziemill, Cumbernauld, G67 2AX | | |
| Place of manuf | facture | Scotland, UK | | |
| Product referen | nce/number | d+b facades powder coated aluminium rainscreen cassette system | | |
| Thickness (ove | erall system) | Note 1 | | |
| Density (overa | ll system) | Note 1 | | |
| Mass per unit a | area (overall system) | Note 1 | | |
| Generic type o | fproduct | Polyester powder coating applied to an aluminium substrate | | |
| Flame retardar limited during p | nt treatment added, or organic content production (yes/no), if yes give details | No. | | |
| European prod | luct standard, if applicable | Note 1 | | |
| Industry/in-hou | ise product standard, if applicable | Note 1 | | |
| Attestation of c | conformity systems, if applicable | Note 1 | | |
| Topcoat (1) (test face) | Generic type Product reference Manufacturer Colour Specific density (wet) Application rate (wet) (m²/litre) Dry film thickness (dft) Mass per unit area/density (dry) Inert filler (type, amount, density) (if applicable) Trade name flame retardant Generic type flame retardant Generic type Product reference | Polyester "Y2214F" - D2525 Super Durable powder (Anodic range). AkzoNobel Powder Coatings Anodic Bronze, Matt (observed – Dark Brown) N/A N/A Average 36 - 54 micron coating (no reading below 22 micron) Cured PPC weight of less than 86.4 g/m ² Note 1 Note 1 Note 1 Note 1 Note 1 Note 1 Note 1 Note 1 Note 1 | | |
| | Product reterence Manufacturer Colour Specific density (wet) Application rate (wet) (m²/litre) Dry film thickness (dft) Mass per unit area/density (dry) Inert filler (type, amount, density) (if applicable) Trade name flame retardant Generic type flame retardant Amount flame retardant | | | |

| Company: d+b facades | | |
|--|--|---|
| Parameter | | Details (if applicable) |
| Layer (3) | Generic type Product reference Manufacturer Colour Specific density (wet) Application rate (wet) (m²/litre) Dry film thickness (dft) Mass per unit area/density (dry) Inert filler (type, amount, density) (if applicable) Trade name flame retardant Generic type flame retardant Amount flame retardant | n/a |
| Primer (if applicable) | Generic type Product reference Manufacturer Colour Specific density (wet) Application rate (wet) (m²/litre) Dry film thickness (dft) Mass per unit area/density (dry) Inert filler (type, amount, density) (if applicable) Trade name flame retardant Generic type flame retardant Amount flame retardant | n/a |
| Substrate (if applicable) (see EN 13238) | - Generic type - Product standard - Product name/reference - Manufacturer - Thickness - Density or mass per unit area - Class (EN 13501-1) | Aluminium Alloy Sheet 3103H14 Hydro 3 mm 2.73 g/cm ³ EN 485-1:2016 |
| Face to be tested | | Note 1 |
| Orientation aspects | | Note 1 |
| Sampling Identification Reference | | Note 1 |
| Additional information | | Note 1 |

Note 1: This information was not supplied by the test sponsor.



Figure A.1: Schematic diagram showing joint detailing, provided by the test sponsor

Figure A.2: EN 13823 test specimen

